ELLIN «TUCKER

March 25, 2025

Ms. Stephanie Archer-Smith
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

Dear Stephanie:

As arranged, we have prepared the Form 990, Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax, for the
year ended June 30, 2024. We are uploading three files to the portal. A complete client copy, a copy to be
attached to your MD Annual Update of Charitable Registration via the MD OneStop website and a file with
Form 8879-TE, the federal efile authorization form.

If the return meets with your approval, it should be executed and filed in accordance with the following
instructions.

Signature

Form 8879-TE, the federal efile authorization form must be signed by an officer to authorize electronic filing.
Filing

Return the signed Form 8879-TE to our office by email or uploading to the portal. We will then transmit
your federal return electronically to the IRS. Please return the form promptly so that we can transmit the
form by the due date of May 15, 2025.

The Maryland copy of the Form 990, with the detail Schedule B pages removed, and audited financial
statement attached, will need to be submitted via Maryland’s OneStop portal as part of your Annual
Charitable Registration Renewal.

Tax/refund due

No tax is due with the return to the Internal Revenue Service, the Maryland Annual Registration fee is paid
via the OneStop filing.

The client copy of the return for your files. We suggest that you retain this copy indefinitely.

If you have any questions regarding the enclosures, please contact the signer.

Sincerely,

Susan P. Keller, CPA

“ ;:EETEE;EQFT 3 }*‘ Dl-'l( © 400 East Pratt Street | Suite 200 | Baltimore, MD 21202 H © PH 410.727.5735 l © FX 410.727,1405 || ELLINANDTUCKER.COM H




IRS E-file Signature Authorization OMB No. 1545-0047
forn 38T9-TE for a Tax Exempt Entity

For calendar year 2023, or fiscal year beginning  J ULt 1 ,2023, andendng  JUN 30 202_ 2023
Department of the Treasury Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records.
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879TE for the latest information.
Name of filer EIN or SSN
MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723

Name and title of officer or person subjecttotax STEPHANIE ARCHER-SMITH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
[Part] | Type of Return and Return Information

Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-TE and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. Form 8038-CP and
Form 5330 filers may enter dollars and cents. For all other forms, enter whole dollars only. If you check the box on line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, 5a, 6a, 7a, 8a, 9a,
or 10a below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, 5b, 6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, or 10b,
whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more
than one line in Part I.

1a  Form 990 check here . E b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1ld,459,615.
2a Form 990-EZ check here . |:| b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line Q) . 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here |:| b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line 22) 3b
4a Form 990-PF check here |:| b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part V, line5) 4b
5a Form 8868 check here ... (] b Balance due (Form 8868, line3c) ... . . ... 5b
6a Form 990-T check here . |:| b Total tax (Form 990-T, Part lll, line 4) 6b
7a  Form 4720 check here [ ] b Total tax (Form 4720, Part lll, e 1) .................oooooooooooooeoooesoeee e 7b
8a Form 5227 check here . |:| b FMV of assets at end of tax year (Form 5227, temD) . . .. 8b
9a Form 5330 check here . |:| b Tax due (Form 5330, Part Il, line 19) 9b

10a__Form 8038-CP check here |:| b _Amount of credit payment requested (Form 8038-CP, Part llI, line 22) 10b
| Part Il Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer or Person Subject to Tax

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above entity or |:| | am a person subject to tax with respect to (name
of entity) , (EIN) and that | have examined a copy of the

2023 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and

complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the electronic return. | consent to allow my

intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an
acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c) the date
of any refund. If applicable, | authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit)

entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the federal taxes owed on this return, and the

financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no

later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also authorize the financial institutions involved in the processing of the electronic
payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to the payment. | have selected a

personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the electronic return and, if applicable, the consent to electronic funds withdrawal.

PIN: check one box only
lauthorize ELLIN & TUCKER, CHARTERED toentermyPIN[ 05685 |

ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but
do not enter all zeros

s my signature on the tax year 2023 electronically filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed

|:| As an officeror person subject to tax with respect to the entity, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the tax year 2023 electronically filed
return. If | haveindicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the
IRS Fed/State program, | will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

Signature of officer or person subject to tax Date
| Part i Certification and Authentication
ERO’s EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification

number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN. [ 52781929934 |
Do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2023 electronically filed return indicated above. | confirm that | am

submitting this return in accgidance with the requirements of fRub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized IRS e-fijle Providers for
Business Returns.

ERO's signature Qo K Date 03/25/25

ERO Must Retain This Form - See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions. Form 8879-TE (2023)

LHA 302521 01-05-24
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~m 990

Departmen

Internal Revenue Service

EXTENDED TO MAY 15, 2025

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

t of the Treasury

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Open to Public

Inspection

A For tl

JUL 1, 2023

he 2023 calendar year, or tax year beginning

andending JUN 30,

2024

B cCheckif C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:
oenge | MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.
yl'_?é?w%e Doing business as 52-6074723
ratien Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Roomy/site | E Telephone number

et/ 515 S HAVEN STREET

retu

termin-
ated

rem®| BALTIMORE, MD

retu

|:|/—_\pplica-
tion

pen

410-558-0932

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code

21224

G Gross receipts $

15,999,801.

F Name and address of principal officer: STEPHANIE ARCHER-SMITH
SAME AS C ABOVE

ding

| Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3)

[ 1501(c) ( )

(insert no.) [ | 4947(a)(1

yor [ 1597

J Website:

WWW.MEALSONWHEELSMD . ORG

H(a) Is this a group return
for subordinates?
H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:| Yes |:| No
If "No," attach a list. See instructions
H(c) Group exemption number

|:|Yes No

K _Form of organization: Corporation [ | Trust [ ] Association [ | Other | L Year of formation: 196 7] M State of legal domicile: MD
[Partl| Summary
o| 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: SPECIALIZING IN SERVICES TO THE
Q AGING, MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND SERVES HOMEBQOUND AGING
g 2 Check this box |:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . 3 26
3 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . ... 4 25
9 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2023 (Part V, line 2a) .. 5 160
Z‘E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if NECESSaNY) 6 3244
G| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 ... ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
o| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIl, line 1h) ... 16,008,249. 11,404,019.
2| 9 Program service revenue (Part VI, line2g) 3,405,339. 2,291,458.
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 300,777. 788,743.
©1 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) -23,950. -24,605.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIll, column (A), line 12) ... 19 ’ 690 ’ 415. 14 ’ 459 ’ 615.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) .. 0. 0.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line4) . 0. 0.
ol 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part X, column (A), lines 5-10) 5,067,749. 5,508,246.
2( 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) . . . . . 0. 0.
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 1,072,973.
Wl 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f24e) 8,730,657. 9,002,013.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part X, column (A), line25) 13,798,406. 14,510,259.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 fromline 12 ... ... 5,892,009. -50,644.
54 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
£5 20 Totalassets (Part X, ine 16) ... 33,034,118.] 35,041,065.
<J 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) ... 2,030,118. 2,589,291.
25 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from iNe 20 ........o..coovvorvvverviviiriecriieenn 31,004,000. 32,451,774.
| Part Il | Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Signature of officer Date
Here STEPHANIE ARCHER-SMITH, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name rer s signatuge | A\ !! Date cheok [ ]| PTIN
Paid SUSAN KELLER Q 03/25/25 Isfelf-employed P00245169
Preparer |Firm'sname ELLIN & TUCKER, CHARTERED Firm'sEIN 52-0959934
Use Only | Firm'saddress 400 EAST PRATT ST. SUITE 200

BALTIMORE, MD 21202 Phone no.410-727-5735

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions ... .. ... ... Yes |:| No
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. 332001 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)

SEE SCHEDULE O FOR ORGANIZATION MISSION STATEMENT CONTINUATION



Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723  page?
| Part i | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part Il ... |:|
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND'S CHARITABLE MISSION, TO KEEP

HOMEBOUND PEOPLE LIVING SAFELY AND INDEPENDENTLY AT HOME THROUGH THE
PROVISION OF NUTRITIOUS MEALS, PERSONAL CONTACT AND SUPPORT SERVICES,
REDUCES HOSPITALIZATION, AND PREVENTS PREMATURE INSTITUTIONALIZATION.

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

PFOF FOMM 990 OF 990-EZ? ...\ eee oo [Jves [XINo
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? ... .. .. |:| Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 8 Ji 4 6 5 i 3 0 1 . including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 2 7 2 9 1 7 4 5 8 . )
NUTRITION SERVICES

NUTRITION SERVICES INCLUDES THE DELIVERY OF A DAILY HOT LUNCH MEAL AND
COLD DINNER MEAL WHICH OFFER TWO-THIRDS OF THE DAILY ALLOWANCE OF
NUTRIENTS FOR AN ADULT OVER 60 AND ARE LOW IN FAT, SODIUM, AND
CONCENTRATED SUGARS. WEEKEND AND HOLIDAY MEALS ARE OFFERED AS ARE
SPECIALTY MEALS INCLUDING KOSHER, KOREAN, DIABETIC AND TEXTURE MODIFIED
MEALS.

4b  (Code: ) (Expenses $ 3 ) 1 8 2 y 7 3 8 e including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
CLIENT SERVICES

CLIENT SUPPORT SERVICES BEGIN WITH A COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT OF CLIENT
NEEDS AND OFFER A UNIQUE AND INDIVIDUAL COMPLEMENT OF SERVICES THAT
INCLUDES DAILY SAFETY AND WELLNESS MONITORING, CRISIS RESPONSE, SNAP
SCREENING AND ENROLLMENT, GROCERY ASSISTANCE, HOME REPAIR AND
MODIFICATION, PET FOOD DELIVERY, AND CASE MANAGEMENT AND CARE
COORDINATION SERVICES THAT OFFER LINKS TO OTHER COMMUNITY RESOURCES.

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) _(Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses 11,648,039.

Form 990 (2023)

332002 12-21-23
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 Page3
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
I "YES," COMPIETE SCREAUIE A ..o 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete SCREAUIE C, PArt | .............cco oo 3 X
4  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? |f "Yes," complete SCREQUIE C, PAt Il .............coo oottt 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19% jf "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il ............................c.ococooeeeie, 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ...............ccocvcvoeeeceeeeeen. 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? Jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE D, Part lll ...\ oo\ oo 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV ... ... 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi-endowments? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, PArt V' ....................c.ccoooiiiieioec oo 10| X
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X,
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Pt VI oo 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ..............ccoo oo, 1b| X
c Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ..............ccoooo oo, 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX .................ccocii oo i i [ X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e | X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 111 | X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE D, Parts XI @NG XIl ...............ooo...ooeooeeoeee oo 12a | X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xl is optional ............... 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? If "Yes," complete Schedule E  ..............coooovoooe 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | QNG IV ..............ccoooe oo e 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 11and IV ... @ e 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il @nd IV ................oo e 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? f "Yes, " complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions ... 17 | X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? f "Yes," complete SCREAUIE G, Part Il ..............ooo oot 18 | X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? jf "Yes,"
COMPIEte SCREAUIE G, Pat Il ...........c.oo oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? jf "Yes," complete Schedule H ...............ccocooeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? if "Yes." complete Schedule I. Parts [and I .....c.ccoccociovieeniiiiieiiiien: 21 X
332008 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723  page4
[ Part IV | Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinueq)

Yes | No

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 27 f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ....................ccocoooioieeeeeeeee e 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIB J ... ... oo 2| X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If "NO," GO 10 N8 25@ ..............c..ooe oo 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b

c Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
aNY TAX-BXEMPE DONAS? | e 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | ..................ccccocooverevevereennn.. 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE L, PArt | ... oo oo 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ..................ccocooveeceenne... 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part il ......... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule L, Part IV,

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? f
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? ¢
"Yes," complete SChedule L, Part IV ...................c..coo oo 28c X
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? jf "Yes, " complete Schedule M
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? f "Yes," complete SCREAUIE M ...............c..cooi oot 30 X

88

31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes," complete

SCREAUIE N, PAIt Il ...........oo...o oo 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | ...............coc oo, 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Ii, Ill, or IV, and

PRIV, l18 T ....ooo..o oo 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(0)(13)? . 35a X

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity

within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€@ 2 ..............oceoceeeeoeeeeoeeeeeee e 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ..................cccooi i 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ........................ 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?

Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O ... i et iiiiiriiiees 38 | X

| PartV | Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -O- if not applicable .. ... ... ... 1a 26
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize WINNerS? ... ic
332004 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723  Page5
[PartV| Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (ontinued)

Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements, |
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by thisreturn ... ... 2a 160
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 1 2b X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? jf "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ...............cc.ccc....... 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear? . ... 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? 6b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a | X

b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7 | X
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
O file FOM 82820 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year ... . . .. | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? . . . . 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f X
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? .. | 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIll, line 12 ... ... ... 1 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received fromthem.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ................. 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans ... [13b
c Enterthe amountof reservesonhand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? . 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? jf "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O 14b

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X

If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities

that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069.
332005 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723  Page6

| Part VI | Governance, Management, and Disclosure. roreach "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI e,
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear ... 1a 26
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . ... 1b 25
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key emMplOYee? | | e, 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision
of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . ... . ... 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? e 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? e 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or
persons other than the governing body? e 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:
a The gOVerINg DOGY? s 8a | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? gb | X

9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization’s mailing address? Jf "Yes " provide the names and addresses on Schedule Q ......ccoooviciieiieiieeiiiiiiiciieiieess 9 X
Section B. Policies (ps section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? . 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f "No, " GOtoliNe 13 ... e 12a | X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? ... .. 120 | X
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? jf "Yes," describe
on Schedule O hOW thiS WAS GONE ...................ccoi oo 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? ... 13 | X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 | X

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official ... |15a X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization ... 15b | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the Year? 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
exempt status with respect to such arrangements?
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed MD
18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
|:| Own website |:| Another’s website Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records

JANET E. HEIFNER - 410-558-0917
515 S. HAVEN ST., BALTIMORE, MD 21224
332006 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 Page 7
|Part VII| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated

Employees, and Independent Contractors

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."
® | ist the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
® | ist all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® | ist all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

|:| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) © (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | chPe Sf::fr’er‘than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for | S R 3 organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related g § . % (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ | 5 2 |g 1099-NEC) and related
below ElelL]E18E = organizations
ine) | E|E|c|5|2E 5
STEPHANIE ARCHER-SMITH 35.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X X 200,396. 0. 14,264.
JAN E HEIFNER 35.00
CFO X 134,352. 0. 15,759.
TIM MAY 35.00
cDo X 125,668. 0. 10,741.
ALAN HIRSCH 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
ALLAN DALEY 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
CAROL WRIGHT 1.00
SITE REPRESENTATIVE X 0. 0. 0.
COLLEEN PLEASANT KLINE, ESQ. 5.00
PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
DAN MCGRAIN 1.00
SITE REPRESENTATIVE X 0. 0. 0.
DANIELLE FORD 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
DENNIS FINNEGAN 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
EVAN FELPS 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
GARY PEISACH 1.00
IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
JENNIFER RAY 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
KEIVA RODRIQUES 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
KENYETTA (KENYA) TAYLOR 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
KRISTIN CARTER 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
KRISTINA GREGORY 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
332007 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 Page 8
| Part Vi | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) © (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average o notcfe Sfriﬂfr’enthan one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(istany | 5 the organizations compensation
hours for | 5 g organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related 2 z (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| 2 g (g 1099-NEC) and related
below E| =2 organizations
LORI BURGHAUSER 1.00
TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
PATRICK DUROSEAU 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
PETER DELLA-CROCE 1.00
VICE PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
PHIL BRISCOE 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
ROBERT BRAGER 1.00
SECRETARY X X 0. 0. 0.
ROSA M, SCHARF 1.00
ASST, TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
SCOTT SIMMONS 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
SUSAN D, DRAKE 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
SUZAN LUMPKIN 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
b Subtotal . 460,416. 0.] 40,764.
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, SectionA ... .. 0. 0. 0.
d Total(addlinesibandic) .....................o.oooooiiiii 460,416. 0. 40,764.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
compensation from the organization 8
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? jf "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCH INAIVIAUAI  ................c.oos oot 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ............................c.c....... 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
rendered to the organization? jf "Yes " complete Schedule J for SUCH DEIrSON «weowcociiovieiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiieee it 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B8) ©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
TRIO COMMUNITY MEALS
P O BOX 742992, ATLANTA, GA 30374 FFOOD SERVICE 5,058,311.
LEVINDALE HEBREW GERIATRIC CENTER, 2434
WEST BELVEDERE AVENUE, BALTIMORE, MD 21215 [|[FOOD SERVICE 192,659.
ECHO EFFECT, LLC
6100 SEAFORTH ST, BALTIMORE, MD 21224 FUNDRAISING 180,592.
ENTERPRISE FM TRUST
P O BOX 800089, KANSAS CITY, MO 64180 FLEET MANAGEMENT 166,234.
COMPASSMSP, LLC, 67 PROSPECT AVE, STE 202, [(COMPUTERS AND
HARTFORD, CT 06106 SUPPORT 160,896.
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization 5

SEE PART VII, SECTION A CONTINUATION SHEETS Form 990 (2023)

332008 12-21-23
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52-6074723

Form 990 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.
| Part VI | Section A. _Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) ©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours (check all that apply) compensation compensation amount of
per from from related other
week 8 the organizations compensation
(list any g § organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
hours for | = . § (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
related | 2| & g and related
organizations é § i)’ § organizations
below |Z|E[|[E|2]|=
ine) |E|E|E|2|2]|E
THERON RUSSELL 1.00
COMMUNITY DIRECTOR 0. 0. 0.
WADE H., BARNES 1.00
VICE PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.

Total to Part VII, Section A, line 1c

332201
04-01-23
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 Page 9
| Part VIII | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII ... s, |:|
(A) (B) ©

Total revenue

Related or exempt
function revenue

Unrelated

business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512 - 514

‘2, 1 a Federated campaigns ... 1a 54,110,
© b Membershipdues ... 1b
("':. ¢ Fundraising events 1c 181,947,
;D‘E d Related organizations 1d
,,,-: e Government grants (contributions) | 1e 6,325,442,
,5 f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
E similar amounts not included above . [ 1f 4,842,520,
.'g g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 1g $ 37 , 055 .
3 h Total. Add lines1a-1f ... 11,404,019,
Business Code
o 2 a MEAL SERVICE REVENUE 624100 2,110,470, 2,110,470,
% b MEDICAID WAIVER REVENUE 624100 180,988, 180,988,
S e
o f All other program service revenue ... ..
g Total. Add lines2a-2f ... 2,291,458,
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) 667,612, 667,612,
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties ... .. il
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6 a Grossrents ... 6a
b Less: rental expenses . [6b
¢ Rental income or (loss) 6¢c
d Netrentalincome or (I0SS) ..........coociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii.
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory |7a| 1,481,645, 128,469,
b Less: cost or other basis
g and sales expenses 7b| 1,435,408, 53,575,
§ c Gainor(loss) . ... .. 7c 46,237, 74,894,
& d Net gain or (I0SS) .....o.oov oottt 121,131, 121,131,
E 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
o including $ 181,947, of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
Part IV, line18 8a 26,598
b Less: direct expenses 8b 51,203
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ... -24,605. -24,605,
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
PartIV,line19 ... 9a
b Less: direct expenses ... 9b
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities ...
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances ... 103
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b)
c_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ........................
" Business Code
§ 11 a
s d Allotherrevenue . . .
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... 14,459,615, 2,291,458, 0. 764,138,
332009 12-21-23 Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 page 10
[ Part IX | Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ... e |:|
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total e(Qp))enses Prograg?)service Manage(%)ent and Fund(lr?a)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 . . .
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines15and 16 .
4 Benefits paid to or formembers .
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 394,415. 282,332. 73,143. 38,940.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ...
7 Othersalariesand wages 4,250,658. 3,042,457. 788,201. 420,000.
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 284,678. 224,934. 38,710. 21,034.
9 Other employee benefits 223,507. 154,130. 45,558. 23,819.
10 Payrolitaxes 354,988. 257,904. 61,676. 35,408.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management ...
blegal ... 8,797. 1,527. 7,270.
¢ Accounting ... 57,501. 57,501.
d Lobbying ...
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees 72,465. 72,465,
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 878,785. 329, 345. 421,243. 128,197.
12 Advertising and promotion 133,454. 89,126. 2,241. 42,087.
13 Officeexpenses 532,497. 313,576. 126,431. 92,490.
14 Informationtechnology . . . ...
16 Royalties ...
16 Occupancy ... 210,929. 167,134. 30,365. 13,430.
17 Travel ... 417,630. 416,574. 1,056.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials |
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 46 ,861. 22,433. 11,257. 13,171.
20 Interest ... 45,965. 45,656. 309.
21 Paymentsto affiliates ...
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 549,690. 530,095. 11,706. 7,889.
23 Insurance 42 ,276. 30,375. 10,639. 1,262.
24  Other expenses. ltemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a FOOD & KITCHEN SUPPLIES 5,372,294. 5,372,194. 14. 86.
b OUTSIDE PRINTING & POST 293,350. 46 ,464. 13,493. 233,393.
¢ CLIENT HOUSING REPAIRS 217,166. 204,386. 12,780.
d UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCTS 89,832. 89,832.
e All other expenses 32,521. 27,565. 3,189. 1,767.
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1through24e | 14,510,259.| 11,648,039. 1,789,247. 1,072,973.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here |:| if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

332010 12-21-23
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MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.
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Page 11

[ Part X | Balance Sheet

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X

332011 12-21-23
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(A) (8)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 1,916,789.| 1 3,000,068.
2  Savings and temporary cash investments 4,689,300.] 2 8,849,577.
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 522,832.| 3 518,518.
4  Accounts receivable, net 6,368,827.| a 1,434,690.
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ... 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ... 6
8 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
§ 8 Inventories forsaleoruse ... 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 171,890.] o 270,937.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 7,420,033.
b Less: accumulated depreciation 4,193,254. 2,889,732.( 10c 3,226,779.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 3,842,859.]| 11 4,379,147.
12  Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12,470,434.| 12 13,165,819.
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14 Intangible assets ... ... 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 161,455.| 15 195,530.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) ............................ 33,034,118.] 16 35,041,065.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 1,104,334.| 17 1,338,558.
18 Grantspayable . 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D . 21
» | 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
= | 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 601,120.| 23 839,708.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D ..., 324,664.| 25 411,025.
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through25 ... 2,030,118.] 2 2,589,291.
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ [ 27 Netassets without donor restrictions ... 30,213,953.] 27 31,685,061.
@ | 28  Net assets with donor restrictions 790,047.] 28 766,713.
B Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here |:|
'-i-, and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds .. . 29
@ | 80 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . . 30
<‘t" 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds .. .. 31
g 32 Totalnetassetsorfund balances . .. 31,004,000.] 32 32,451,774.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 33,034,118.] 33 35,041,065.
Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 page 12
[ Part XI | Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 14,459,615.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 14,510,259.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract ine 2 from liNe 1 3 -50,644.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A) ... ... 4 31,004,000.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 1,498,418.
6 Donated services and use of facilities ... 6
7 INVeSIMeNt eXPeNSES 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) 9 0.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
COUMN (B)) oo 10 32,451,774.

Part Xll| Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII ...
Yes | No

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2| X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | X

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? 3a| X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ... 3| X
Form 990 (2023)

332012 12-21-23

13
17490325 132974 05685.000 2023.05070 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRA 05685.01



. . . OMB No. 1545-0047
iz:izo?m A Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2023
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organizatibn Employer identification number

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723
[Partl | Reason for Public Charity Status. (Al organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 |:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)-

|:| A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

|:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)iii).

|:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s name,

city, and state:

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from

activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment

income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.

See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 |:| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

|:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving

the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c |:| Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type Il, Type llI

functionally integrated, or Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

& ON

0 00 B0 O

10

f Enter the number of supported organizations ... |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (ii) EIN (iiii) Type of organization | (\v)Is the organizationlisted | (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
o (described on lines 1-10 in your governing document? K R . i
organization ) > support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) Yes No
Total

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 332021 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023



Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 page2
| Part i | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part lll. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 9103460.[11547729.110039244.(11372411.[11404019./53466863.

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Addlines 1through3 | 9103460.[11547729./10039244.[11372411.[11404019./53466863.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

column ()
Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 53466863.
Sectlon B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
7 Amounts from line 4 9103460./11547729.(10039244.(11372411.[11404019.53466863.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources __ 83,681.| 86,901.]| 259,288.| 354,760.]| 667,612.| 1452242.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on

10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part VL) .

11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 54919105.

12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 | 24,014,769.

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, Check this DOX Aand SO MerE ...t oo iiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiin |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) ... 14 97.36 %
15 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part I, line 14 15 98.20 %

16a 33 1/3% support test - 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ...
b 33 1/3% support test - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported OrganiZatioN
17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... ... . ...
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions
Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Page3s
[ Part Il | Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-

iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5 . .. .

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

cAddlines7aand7b ...

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from line 6.
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources .

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

cAdd lines 10aand 10b ... ...
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon
12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part VL) ----ooooeoe
13 Total support. (add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

CheCK this DOX AN St MO e .o it o e iiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiieieie |:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) .. ... ... ... 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il line 15 ... e, 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2023 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) ... ... ... 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 17 18 %

19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... ... |:|
b 33 1/3% support tests - 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 193, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . .
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions  .............................. |:|
332023 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Page4
[PartIV] supporting Organizations

(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing

documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1
2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer

lines 3b and 3c below. 3a
b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)4), (5), or (6) and

satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? f

"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a
b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b
c Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c
5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? |f "Yes,"

answer lines 5b and 5¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part V1, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action,; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5¢c
6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI. 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8
9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? Jif "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
c Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? Jf "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c
10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? if "Yes," answer line 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
—determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

332024 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Pages
[ Part IV | Supporting Organizations (continueq)

Yes | No

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? Jf "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide

____detailin Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported

organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "Yes," explain in

Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
ization 2

. .
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

ization(s) 1

—the supported organ
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes | No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how

the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have a

significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s

income or assets at all times during the tax year? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's

o o »
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a |:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b |:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c [JThe organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructiol
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes | No
a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? |f "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? |f "Yes," explain in

)~

Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in
these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? Jf "Yes" or "No" provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? Jf 'Yes," describe in Part VI the role plaved by the organization in this regard. 3b
332025 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Pages6
[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part V). See instructions.
All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year (optional)

Net short-term capital gain
Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or

a|h O N |-

[0 (S £ [V | VI P

collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

(]

7 Other expenses (see instructions)
8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4) 8

~

(B) Current Year

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year (optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities 1a

Average monthly cash balances 1ib

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets ic

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢) 1d

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

o a0 |T |v

(]
[

IS

w0 [N o |
0N jo |0 |~

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)
Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)
Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6
|:| Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

instructions).

a|d|OIN |-

o OB W N |-

~
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Ppage7
[PartV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - provide details in Part VI) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part V1). See instructions. 8
9 Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6 9
10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
0] (i) (iii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Underdistributions Distributable
Pre-2023 Amount for 2023

1__ Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2023 (reason-
able cause required - explain in Part Vl). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2023

From 2018

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

From 2022

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

Carryover from 2018 not applied (see instructions)

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4  Distributions for 2023 from Section D,

line 7: $
a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years
b _Applied to 2023 distributable amount
c_Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2023. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2024. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2019

Excess from 2020

Excess from 2021

Excess from 2022

Excess from 2023

SR |™e a0 [T |

o | |0 |T |o
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Pages

| Part VI | Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part Ill, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)

332028 12-21-23 Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OMB No. 15450047

(Form 990)
Attach to Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. 20 23
Department of the Treasury Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.
Internal Revenue Service
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723
Organization type (check one):
Filers of: Section:
Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization
Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947 (a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

0 ooond

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

|:| For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part Il, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h;
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and .

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), I, and Ill.

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
purpose. Don’t complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year $

Caution: An organization that isn’t covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it must
answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify
that it doesn’t meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)

LHA 323451 12-26-23



Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)

Page 2

Name of organization

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.

Employer identification number

52-6074723

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
ANNE ARUNDEL COUNTY AREA AGENCY ON
1 | AGING Person
Payroll |:|
7320 RITCHIE HWY 457,974. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
GLEN BURNIE, MD 21061 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
BALTIMORE CITY HEALTH DEPARTMENT CARE
2 | SERVICES Person
Payroll |:|
417 E FAYETTE STREET 3,594,692. Noncash |:|
(Complete Part Il for
BALTIMORE, MD 21202 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
3 | BALTIMORE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF AGING Person
Payroll |:|
611 CENTRAL AVENUE 1,089,709. Noncash |:|
(Complete Part Il for
TOWSON, MD 21204 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
4 | CARROLL COUNTY BUREAU OF AGING Person
Payroll |:|
125 STONER AVE 165,766. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
WESTMINSTER, MD 21157 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
5 | HARFORD COUNTY AREA AGENCY ON AGING Person
Payroll |:|
145 NORTH HICKORY AVE 282,735. Noncash |:|
(Complete Part Il for
BEL AIR, MD 21014 noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
HOWARD COUNTY DEPT. OF CITIZEN
6 | SERVICES Person
Payroll |:|
9830 PATUXENT WOODS DR 314,987. Noncash |:|

COLUMBIA, MD 21046

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

323452 12-26-23

17490325 132974 05685.000
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)

Page 2

Name of organization

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.

Employer identification number

52-6074723

Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
(@ (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
JEWISH COMMUNITY FEDERATION OF
7 | BALTIMORE Person
Payroll |:|
101 W MOUNT ROYAL AVE 120,000. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
BALTIMORE, MD 21201 noncash contributions.)
(@ (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
8 | UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL MARYLAND Person
Payroll |:|
P O BOX 1576 54,110. Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
BALTIMORE, MD 21203 noncash contributions.)
(@ (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
MONTGOMERY COUNTY HEALTH & HUMAN
9 | SERVICES Person
Payroll |:|
401 HUNGERFORD DR, 4TH FLR 249,588. Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
ROCKVILLE, MD 20850 noncash contributions.)
(@ (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person (]
Payroll 1
Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(@ (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person (]
Payroll 1
Noncash [ ]
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(@ (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution

Person |:|
Payroll |:|
Noncash [ ]

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

323452 12-26-23

17490325 132974 05685.000
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)

Page 3

Name of organization

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.

Employer identification number

52-6074723

Partll Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a
No. (b) () (d)

. . FMV (or estimate) .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Partl :

(a
(c)
No.

. (b) . FMV (or estimate) ) .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Partl :

(a
(c)
No.

. (b) . FMV (or estimate) ) .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Partl .

(a
(c)
No.

. (b) | FMV (or estimate) (@ .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Partl .

(a
(c)
No.

. (b) . FMV (or estimate) ) .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Partl .

(a
(c)
No.

. (b) . FMV (or estimate) @ .
from Description of noncash property given (See instructions.) Date received
Partl .

323453 12-26-23

17490325 132974 05685.000
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)

Page 4
Name of organization Employer identification number
MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723

Part Ill Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations
completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this info. once.) $
Use duplicate copies of Part lll if additional space is needed.

(a) No.

;TOI:'II (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
;TOTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
;TOTI (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
(a) No.
;TOI;I’II (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
ar
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
323454 12-26-23 Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 15450047
(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 2023

PartlV, line 6, 7, 8,9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Department of the Treasury

Attach to Form 990. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723

| Part | | Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the
organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 6.

Total number at end of year
Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

a HON

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control?

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

|:| Yes |:| No

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private benefit? ...

...................................................................................................... |:| Yes |:| No

[Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
|:| Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area

|:| Protection of natural habitat
|:| Preservation of open space

|:| Preservation of a certified historic structure

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year.

Total number of conservation easements
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements

o 0 T 9

on a historic structure listed in the National Register

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included on line 2a
Number of conservation easements included on line 2¢c acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

Held at the End of the Tax Year

2a
2b
2c

2d

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax

year

4  Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? |:| Yes |:| No

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)

and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?

9 In Part XIll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the
organization’s accounting for conservation easements.

| Part Il | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a [f the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xlll the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.
b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, line 1
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 $
b _Assets included in FOrm 990, Part X . e iis e i i i iiietiieitiiiiiiieiiiieiiieiiaias $
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 page?2
[Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets ,ntinueq)
3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).
a |:| Public exhibition d |:| Loan or exchange program
b |:| Scholarly research e |:| Other
c |:| Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIII.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? ... |:| Yes |:| No

| Part IV I Escrow and Custodial Arrangements Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
ONFOM 990, Part X7 oo
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the following table:

Amount
¢ Beginning balance ic
d Additions during the year . 1d
e Distributions during the year 1e
fOEnding balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? . |:| Yes |:| No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIIl. Check here if the explanation has been provided in Part X1l ... |:|
| Part V | Endowment Funds GCompists if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance . ... 21,002,593, 20,260,509, 22,795,065, 7,514,771, 5,492,931,
b Contributions 4,658,308, 880,448, 209,863, 13,317,366, 1,961,745,
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 2,212,267, 1,206,580, -2,053,337, 2,229,492, 179,723,
d Grants or scholarships .. . ...
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs 1,406,160, 1,283,331, 652,746, 244,296, 99,996.
f Administrative expenses 72,465, 61,613, 38,336, 22,268, 19,632,
g Endofyearbalance 26,394,543, 21,002,593, 20,260,509, 22,795,065, 7,514,771,
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment 100 %
b Permanent endowment %
¢ Term endowment %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated OrganizationS? ... .. . ... 3a)| X
(i) Related Organizations? ... e |3a(ii) X
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ji), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b
4 Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
| Part VI | Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land 385,554. 385,554.
b Buildings 2,674,804.[ 1,951,853. 722,951.
¢ Leasehold improvements ...
d Equipment 1,688,933. 1,070,122. 618,811.
e Other .. . 2,670,742.] 1,171,279.| 1,499,463.
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10¢, column (B)) ....cooooioeiiciiciicicieiiieiiciiee. 3,226,779.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
332052 09-28-23
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 page3
[Part VlI] Investments - Other Securities
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives ... ...
(2) Closely held equity interests
(3) Other
(n) CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENT
(B8) FUND 12,768,794. END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
(¢ HEDGE FUNDS 397,025. END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE

=

w

(
(
(

ul

Qo

@)

(H)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, cal. (B)) 13,165,819.

| Part VIII| Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2
(3)
4
(5)
(6)
@
(8
(9
Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))
[Part IX| Other Assets
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 15, €Ol (B)) w..iiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e
| Part X | Other Liabilities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
() PENSION LIABILITY 201,405.
3) PRIVATE CLIENT DEPOSITS 13,347.
4 LEASE LIABILITY 196,273.
(6)
(6)
@)
(8)
©)

Total. (Column (h) must equal Form 990. Part X line 25. €L (Bl woroooeooooeooooeooeeeooeeeoeoeeeeeoeeoeeeeeeeoeeeeee 411,025.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIlI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII ...
Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 page4
| Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1| 16,633,457,
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

a Net unrealized gains (losses) oninvestments 2a 1,498,418.

b Donated services and use of facilities 2b 747,889.

¢ Recoveries of prior year grants 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) 2d

e Addlines 2athrough2d ... 2 | 2,246,307.
8 Subtractline 2e fromline 1 3 | 14,387,150.
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VI, line 12, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b . . ... .. 4a 72,465.

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) 4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 72,465.

Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [ [ine 12.) .coooovvoiiieiiieieiiiiiiiiiieiin 5 14,459,615.
| Part { | Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 15,185,683.
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

a Donated services and use of facilities .. 2a 747,889.

b Prioryearadjustments 2b

€ OtherloSSeS . . . ... 2c

d Other (Describe in Part XIIL) ... 2d

e Addlines 2athrough 2d 2e 747,889.
3 Subtractline 2e fromline 1 ... 3 | 14,437,794.
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b . ... 4a 72,465.

b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) 4b

¢ Addlinesdaanddb ... 4c 72,465.

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part [ fin 18.)  -vioieeeeoiiiieieiseiiieiceeieeeee. 5 | 14,510,259.

| Part Xlll| Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART V, LINE 4:

THE ENDOWMENT FUNDS WERE ESTABLISHED TO PROVIDE A PREDICTABLE STREAM OF

FUNDS TO SUPPORT THE ORGANIZATION'S OPERATIONS, TO PROVIDE A HARDSHIP FUND

TO PAY FOR MEALS FOR LOW INCOME CLIENTS AND TO PROVIDE FOR A CAPITAL

BUILDING RESERVE FOR THE NEW BUILDING PROJECT.

PART X, LINE 2:

THE ORGANIZATION FOLLOWS THE PROVISIONS OF ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN

INCOME TAXES UNDER THE INCOME TAXES TOPIC OF THE CODIFICATION. THE

CODIFICATION REQUIRES THE ORGANIZATION'S EVALUATION OF TAX POSITIONS,

WHICH INCLUDE MAINTAINING ITS TAX-EXEMPT STATUS AND THE TAXABILITY OF ANY

UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME, AND DOES NOT ALLOW RECOGNITION OF TAX POSITIONS

332054 09-28-23 Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Pages
[Part XIII | Supplemental Information ontinveq)

WHICH DO NOT MEET A "MORE-LIKELY-THAN-NOT" THRESHOLD OF BEING SUSTAINED BY

THE APPLICABLE TAX AUTHORITY. MANAGEMENT DOES NOT BELIEVE IT TOOK ANY TAX

POSITIONS THAT WOULD NOT MEET THIS THRESHOLD.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2023
332055 09-28-23
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SCHEDULE G
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the

organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organizatioh

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC.

Part | Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not
required to complete this part.

Employer identification number

52-6074723

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

Mail solicitations

O T o

Phone solicitations
d In-person solicitations

Internet and email solicitations

e Solicitation of non-government grants

f Solicitation of government grants

g Special fundraising events

2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, or
key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services?

b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

Yes

|:|No

o i) Did . v) Amount paid . .
(i) Name and address of individual . . ft(m Faiser (iv) Gross receipts tg %or retained by) (vi) Amount paid
or entity (fundraiser) (i) Activity have custody from activity fundraiser to (or retained by)
contiputions? listed in col. (i) organization

ECHO EFFECT, LLC - 6100 Yes | No
SEAFORTH ST, BALTIMORE, MD MAIL SOLICITATIONS X 180,592, 33,000, 147,592,
HUNTSINGER & JEFFER - 809
BROOK HILL CIR, RICHMOND, VA MAIL SOLICITATIONS X 116,408, 45,094, 71,314,
Total 297,000, 78,094, 218,906,

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration

or licensing.

MD

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

SEE PART IV FOR CONTINUATIONS

LHA 332081 09-13-23
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Schedule G (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Page2
| Part Il | Fundraising Events. complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more than $15,000
of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
NIGHT OF A NONE (add col. (a) through
MILLION MEAL col. ()
° (event type) (event type) (total number) ’
>
C
é 1 Grossreceipts 208,545. 208,545.
2 Less: Contributions 181,947. 181,947.
3 Gross income (line 1 minus line2) ... 26,598. 26,598.
4 Cashprizes ...
5 Noncashprizes . ...
3
é 6 Rent/facilitycosts 9,570. 9,570.
o
X
i
g 7 Food and beverages .. ... 10,780. 10,780.
s
8 Entertainment ... 3,000. 3,000.
9 Otherdirectexpenses ... ... 27 r 853. 27 ’ 853.
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 incolumn (d) 51,203.
Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) ... e -24,605.

| Part 1} | Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

: (b) Pull tabs/instant . (d) Total gaming (add

% (a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo | (€ Othergaming ;) (a) through col. (c))
e
&

1 GrosSSrevenUe ...
o| 2 Cashoprizes ...
&
&
gl 8 Noncashprizes . ...
i
8| 4 Rent/facitycosts
=

5 Otherdirectexpenses ...

|:| Yes % |:| Yes % |:| Yes %
6 Volunteerlabor .. ... ... [ INo [ INo [ INo

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d)

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d) ...

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:
a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?
b If "No," explain:

10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?
b If "Yes," explain:

332082 09-13-23 Schedule G (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule G (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 Page3

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? |:| Yes |:| No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed
to administer charitable gaming? [ Jves [_INo
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization’s facility 13a %
b Anoutside faCility e 13b %
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gaming/special events books and records:
Name
Address
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? ... ... ... |:| Yes |:| No
b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization $ and the amount

of gaming revenue retained by the third party  $
c If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

Name

Address

16 Gaming manager information:

Name

Gaming manager compensation $

Description of services provided

|:| Director/officer |:| Employee |:| Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming lICONSE? e [ Jves [_INo
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the
organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year $
|Part |V| Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v); and Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 10b,

15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions.

SCHEDULE G, PART I, LINE 2B, LIST OF TEN HIGHEST PAID FUNDRAISERS:

(I) NAME OF FUNDRAISER: ECHO EFFECT, LLC

(I) ADDRESS OF FUNDRAISER: 6100 SEAFORTH ST, BALTIMORE, MD 21224

(I) NAME OF FUNDRAISER: HUNTSINGER & JEFFER

(I) ADDRESS OF FUNDRAISER: 809 BROOK HILL CIR, RICHMOND, VA 23227

PART I, LINE 2B, COLUMN (V):

332083 09-13-23

Schedule G (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule G (Form 990) MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND,INC. 52-6074723 pages
[ Part IV | Supplemental Information ontinveq)

ECHO EFFECT, LLC - CONSULTATION, COPY-WRITING, LIST ACQUISITION,

COORDINATING PRODUCTION, ANALYSIS OF RESULTS. FEE FOR SERVICES WAS

$33,000, AND THE REMAINING COST WAS TO COVER THE POSTAGE AND PRINTING.

HUNTSINGER & JEFFER - CONSULTATION, COPY-WRITING, LIST ACQUISITION,

COORDINATING PRODUCTION, ANALYSIS OF RESULTS. FEE FOR SERVICES WAS

$45,094, AND THE REMAINING COST WAS TO COVER THE POSTAGE AND PRINTING.

Schedule G (Form 990)
332084 04-01-23
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMEB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23.

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub“c
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723
[Part] | Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VI, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part lll to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
|:| First-class or charter travel |:| Housing allowance or residence for personal use
|:| Travel for companions |:| Payments for business use of personal residence
|:| Tax indemnification and gross-up payments |:| Health or social club dues or initiation fees
|:| Discretionary spending account |:| Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part lll to explain ... . ... 1b
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked online 1a? ... . ... 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the organization’s
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ill.
|:| Compensation committee |:| Written employment contract
|:| Independent compensation consultant |:| Compensation survey or study
|:| Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 4a X
b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 4b X
c Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? 4c X

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Ill.

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization? . 5a | X
b Any related organization? 5b X

If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part IIl.

6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization? 6a X

b Any related organization? 6b X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Ill.
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes," describe in Part Il 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part Wl ... . 8 X
9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(C) 7 ... i i 9
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions OMS No. 15450047
(Form 990) 2023
Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723
[Partl | Types of Property
(a) (b) © (d)
Check if Nu_mbgr of Noncash contribution Method of determining
applicable | contributions or [ amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts

items contributed| Form 990, Part VIII, line 1g

Art - Works of art

Art - Historical treasures

Art - Fractional interests ...
Books and publications .

Clothing and household goods
Cars and other vehicles

Boats and planes .

Intellectual property
Securities - Publicly traded X 5 18,680.FMV

Secuirities - Closely held stock
Securities - Partnership, LLC, or
trust interests

- -
- O © 0N O G HhON =

12 Securities - Miscellaneous
13 Qualified conservation contribution -

Historic structures ...
14  Qualified conservation contribution - Other
15 Real estate - Residential
16  Real estate - Commercial
17 Real estate - Other
18 Collectibles ...
19 Food inventory X 1 75.[FMV

20 Drugs and medical supplies .
21 Taxidermy
22 Historical artifacts

23 Scientific specimens
24  Archeological artifacts

25 Other ( FOOD AND WINE ) X 15 10,780.FMV
26 Other (AUCTION ITEM ) X 35 7,520.[FMV
27 Other ( )
28 Other ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part V, Donee Acknowledgement . . 29
Yes [ No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through 28, that it
must hold for at least 3 years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn’t required to be used for
exempt purposes for the entire holding Period? 30a X
b If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part Il
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? 31 X
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
COM U ONS 32a X
b If "Yes," describe in Part II.
33 If the organization didn’t report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,
describe in Part Il.
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule M (Form 990) 2023 MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723 Page 2

| Part I I Supplemental Information. Pprovide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether the organization
is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete
this part for any additional information.

332142 09-11-23 Schedule M (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OME No. 1945 0047
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2023
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.qov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1, DESCRIPTION OF ORGANIZATION MISSION:

AND DISABLED ADULTS TO KEEP THEM LIVING SAFELY AND INDEPENDENTLY IN

THEIR HOMES AND COMMUNITIES. BY PROVIDING NUTRITIOUS, HOME-DELIVERED

MEALS AND INDIVIDUALIZED SUPPORT SERVICES, MOWCM IMPACTS REDUCES HEALTH

DISPARITIES, IMPROVES HEALTH OUTCOMES AND SUPPORTS SUCCESSFUL AGING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. HAS A PROCESS TO REVIEW THE 990

AND COPIES ARE PROVIDED TO THE ORGANIZATION'S GOVERNING BOARD AFTER THE

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HAVE BEEN REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE

FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE. A DRAFT FORM 990 IS PREPARED BY OUR ACCOUNTANT.

THE DRAFT IS THEN REVIEWED BY THE CFO, IT, FACILITY, CDO AND CEO. AFTER

ANY NECESSARY CHANGES ARE MADE, A REVISED DRAFT IS PRESENTED TO THE

FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE. AFTER ANY ADDITIONAL CHANGES ARE MADE AND FINAL

APPROVAL IS OBTAINED FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE, THE FORM 990 IS EMAILED TO

THE ENTIRE GOVERNING BOARD. THE APPROVED 990 IS SIGNED BY THE EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR AND SUBMITTED WITHIN THE FILING DEADLINE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

CONFLICT OF INTEREST GUIDELINES ARE ESTABLISHED FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND

MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT STAFF. ANNUALLY, WE REQUIRE THAT A

DIRECTOR DISCLOSES THE EXISTENCE OF A DIRECT OR INDIRECT FINANCIAL INTEREST

ON THE PART OF THE DIRECTOR, AND WHERE SUCH FINANCIAL INTEREST EXISTS TO

ABSTAIN FROM ANY VOTE ON SUCH MATTERS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2023
LHA 332211 11-14-23
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Schedule O (Form 990) 2023 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND (MOWCM) IS COMMITTED TO INDIVIDUAL

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS, COMPETITIVE PAY, MERIT-BASED PAY INCREASES, AND

OTHER EMPLOYEE INCENTIVES. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY AND INTENTION OF THE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO ADMINISTER COMPENSATION

EQUITABLY, CONSISTENTLY, AND FAIRLY WITHIN MOWCM, AND TO MAKE MODIFICATIONS

TO THIS POLICY AS NECESSARY AND APPROPRIATE. MOWCM'S COMPENSATION SYSTEM

IS STRUCTURED AROUND A SALARY-GRADE SCALE THAT IS MARKET-BASED, AND FOCUSES

ON THE INTERNAL EQUITY OF POSITIONS. UNDER THE SALARY-GRADE SYSTEM,

POSITIONS ARE CLASSIFIED INTO SALARY GRADES BASED ON COMPENSABLE FACTORS

SUCH AS REQUIRED SKILLS, EDUCATION, TRAINING, AND DECISION-MAKING AND

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES. NOTABLE CHANGES AND FULL SCALE CHANGES ARE

REVIEWED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S SALARY IS SET

BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS USING COMPARABLE MARKET DATA.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. WILL PROVIDE ITS GOVERNING

DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE

PUBLIC BY WRITTEN REQUEST MAILED TO:

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND

ATTN DEPUTY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, IT, FACILITY

515 S HAVEN STREET BALTIMORE, MD 21224

FORM 990, PART XII, LINE 2C:

THE PROCESS REGARDING THE PREPARATION OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS IS UNCHANGED FROM THE PRIOR YEAR.

332212 11-14-23 Schedule O (Form 990) 2023
42
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Form 8868

(Rev. January 2024)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

File a separate application for each return.
Go to www.irs.gov/Form8868 for the latest information.

Application for Extension of Time To File an Exempt Organization
Return or Excise Taxes Related to Employee Benefit Plans

OMB No. 1545-0047

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically file Form 8868 to request up to a 6-month extension of time to file any of the forms
listed below except for Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit Contracts. An extension
request for Form 8870 must be sent to the IRS in a paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic filing of Form
8868, visit www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Caution: If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-TE and Form 8879-TE for payment

instructions.

All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns.

Part | - Identification

Type or Name of exempt organization, employer, or other filer, see instructions. Taxpayer identification number (TIN)
Print

MEALS ON WHEELS OF CENTRAL MARYLAND, INC. 52-6074723
File by the
due date for | Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.
fingyow | 515 § HAVEN STREET
instructions. | City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.

BALTIMORE, MD 21224
Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application for each return) | 01 |
Application Is For Return | Application Is For Return

Code Code

Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 5227 10
Form 990-PF 04 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 8870 12
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 5330 (individual) 13
Form 990-T (corporation) 07 Form 5330 (other than individual) 14
Form 1041-A 08

® After you enter your Return Code, complete either Part Il or Part lll. Part Ill, including signature, is applicable only for an extension of

time to file Form 5330.

® [f this application is for an extension of time to file Form 5330, you must enter the following information.

Plan Name

Plan Number

Plan Year Ending (MM/DD/YYYY)

Part Il - Automatic Extension of Time To File for Exempt Organizations (see instructions)

The books are in the care of JANET E. HEIFNER

515 S. HAVEN ST.

Telephone No. 410-558-0917

® [f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check this box

- BALTIMORE, MD 21224

Fax No.

® [f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization’s four-digit Group Exemption Number (GEN)

box |:| . If it is for part of the group, check this box

If this is for the whole group, check this

|:| and attach a list with the names and TINs of all members the extension is for.

1 | request an automatic 6-month extension of time until MAY 15 ,20 25 , to file the exempt organization return for
the organization named above. The extension is for the organization’s return for:
|:| calendar year 20 or
X ] tax year beginning JUL 1 ,20 23 , and ending JUN 30 . ,2024
2  If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: |:| Initial return |:| Final return
|:| Change in accounting period
3a If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less
any nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3a| $ 0.
b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b| $ 0.
¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by
using EFTPS (Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c| $ 0.

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.

LHA 323841 12-22-23
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

OPINION

We audited the accompanying financial statements of Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
(Organization), which comprise the Statements of Financial Position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the
related Statements of Activities, Functional Expenses, and Cash Flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 and the change in its net assets and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

BASsIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDITS OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and,
therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing

INDEPENDENT N \ibrl( ELLINANDTUCKER.COM | 410.727.5735 PAGE |1
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standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements,
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance matters regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audits.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also issued our report dated December 19, 2024
on our consideration of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. The report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

W 4 Lo

ELLIN & TUCKER
Certified Public Accountants

Baltimore, Maryland
December 19, 2024
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
June 30, 2024 and 2023

ASSETS
2024 2023
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 3,000,068 S 1,916,789
Accounts and Pledges Receivable, Net 1,509,365 6,368,827
Government Fees and Grants Receivable 443,843 522,832
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 270,937 171,890
Total Current Assets 5,224,213 8,980,338
OTHER ASSETS
Investments (Note 2) 26,394,543 21,002,593
Right-of-Use Assets, Net of Accumulated Amortization
of $90,938 and $38,816, Respectively (Note 7) 195,530 161,455
Property and Equipment, Net (Note 3) 3,226,779 2,889,732
Total Other Assets 29,816,852 24,053,780

Total Assets

$ 35,041,065

$ 33,034,118

(See Independent Auditors’ Report and Accompanying Notes)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION, CONTINUED
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
June 30, 2024 and 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2024 2023
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable S 1,016,552 S 846,598
Accrued Payroll and Payroll Tax Withholdings 322,006 257,736
Accrued Retirement Plan Expense 201,405 148,975
Deferred Revenue 13,347 13,347
Operating Lease Obligations, Current Portion (Note 7) 57,790 39,424
Finance Lease Obligations, Current Portion (Note 8) 225,719 181,658
Total Current Liabilities 1,836,819 1,487,738
OTHER LIABILITIES
Operating Lease Obligations, Long Term (Note 7) 138,483 122,918
Finance Lease Obligations, Long Term (Note 8) 613,989 419,462
Total Other Liabilities 752,472 542,380
Total Liabilities 2,589,291 2,030,118
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 11)
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions:
Board Designated (Note 4) 26,394,543 25,643,431
General 5,290,518 4,570,522
Total Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 31,685,061 30,213,953
With Donor Restrictions (Note 5) 766,713 790,047
Total Net Assets 32,451,774 31,004,000
Total Liabilities and Net Assets S 35,041,065 S 33,034,118
(See Independent Auditors’ Report and Accompanying Notes)
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STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 (With Comparative Totals for 2023)

2024
Without
Donor With Donor 2023
Restrictions Restrictions Total Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Public Support:
Contributions From the Public $ 2,538,743 ¢ 1,092,987 $ 3,631,730 S 3,491,972
United Way of Central Maryland, Inc. 54,110 - 54,110 70,800
The Associated Jewish Community Federation of Baltimore 120,000 - 120,000 120,000
Federal Government Grants 6,102,631 - 6,102,631 5,573,283
State and Local Government Grants 167,231 - 167,231 195,965
Donated Materials, Services, and Occupancy (Note 6) 747,889 - 747,889 697,069
Bequests 19,174 - 19,174 5,530,455
Other 1,071,616 - 1,071,616 833,248
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 1,116,321 (1,116,321) - -
Total Public Support 11,937,715 (23,334) 11,914,381 16,512,792
Other Revenue:
Culinary Event Revenue, Net 157,342 - 157,342 168,575
Meal Service Income 2,166,050 - 2,166,050 3,249,431
Medicaid Waiver Income 180,988 - 180,988 155,908
Draw From Endowments (Note 2) 712,399 - 712,399 621,165
Total Other Revenue 3,216,779 - 3,216,779 4,195,079
Total Support and Revenue 15,154,494 (23,334) 15,131,160 20,707,871
EXPENSES
Program Services:
Nutrition 8,465,301 - 8,465,301 8,557,933
Client Services 3,872,886 - 3,872,886 3,463,453
Supporting Services:
Management and General 1,659,041 - 1,659,041 1,390,857
Fundraising 1,015,231 - 1,015,231 941,081
Total Expenses 15,012,459 - 15,012,459 14,353,324
Change in Net Assets Before Non-Operating Activities 142,035 (23,334) 118,701 6,354,547
NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income, Net (Note 2) 1,427,403 - 1,427,403 523,802
Gain on Disposal of Property and Equipment 74,894 - 74,894 10,053
Other Expenses (173,224) - (173,224) (80,538)
Total Non-Operating Activities 1,329,073 - 1,329,073 453,317
Change in Net Assets 1,471,108 (23,334) 1,447,774 6,807,864
NET ASSETS — BEGINNING OF YEAR 30,213,953 790,047 31,004,000 24,196,136
NET ASSETS — END OF YEAR $ 31,685,061 S 766,713 $ 32,451,774 $ 31,004,000
(See Independent Auditors’ Report and Accompanying Notes)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Without
Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Public Support:
Contributions From the Public S 2,300,326 S 1,191,646 S 3,491,972
United Way of Central Maryland, Inc. 70,800 - 70,800
The Associated Jewish Community Federation of Baltimore 120,000 - 120,000
Federal Government Grants 5,573,283 - 5,573,283
State and Local Government Grants 195,965 - 195,965
Donated Materials, Services, and Occupancy (Note 6) 697,069 - 697,069
Bequests 5,530,455 - 5,530,455
Other 833,248 - 833,248
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 771,341 (771,341) -
Total Public Support 16,092,487 420,305 16,512,792
Other Revenue:
Culinary Event Revenue, Net 168,575 - 168,575
Meal Service Income 3,249,431 - 3,249,431
Medicaid Waiver Income 155,908 - 155,908
Draw from Endowments (Note 2) 621,165 - 621,165
Total Other Revenue 4,195,079 - 4,195,079
Total Support and Revenue 20,287,566 420,305 20,707,871
EXPENSES
Program Services:
Nutrition 8,557,933 - 8,557,933
Client Services 3,463,453 - 3,463,453
Supporting Services:
Management and General 1,390,857 - 1,390,857
Fundraising 941,081 - 941,081
Total Expenses 14,353,324 - 14,353,324
Change in Net Assets Before Non-Operating Activities 5,934,242 420,305 6,354,547
NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income, Net (Note 2) 523,802 - 523,802
Gain on Disposal of Property and Equipment 10,053 - 10,053
Other Expenses (80,538) - (80,538)
Total Non-Operating Activities 453,317 - 453,317
Change in Net Assets 6,387,559 420,305 6,807,864
NET ASSETS — BEGINNING OF YEAR 23,826,394 369,742 24,196,136
NET ASSETS — END OF YEAR $ 30,213,953 S 790,047 S 31,004,000

(See Independent Auditors’ Report and Accompanying Notes)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

2024

2023

S 1,447,774

$ 6,807,864

Depreciation and Amortization 549,689 483,170
Non-Cash Operating Lease Activity (144) 887
Net Realized and Unrealized Gain on Investments (1,544,655) (851,820)
Gain on Disposal of Property and Equipment (74,894) (10,053)
Net Changes in:
Accounts and Pledges Receivable, Net 4,859,462 (4,849,039)
Government Fees and Grants Receivable 78,989 24,909
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets (99,047) (12,754)
Accounts Payable 169,954 394,951
Accrued Payroll and Payroll Tax Withholdings 64,270 13,961
Accrued Retirement Plan Expense 52,430 19,177
Deferred Revenue - (12)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,503,828 2,021,242
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds From Sale of Property and Equipment 128,469 39,029
Purchases of Property and Equipment (490,653) (315,381)
Proceeds From Sale of Investments 1,481,645 1,333,132
Purchases of Investments (5,328,940) (1,223,396)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (4,209,479) (166,616)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment of Finance Lease Obligations (211,070) (335,087)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,083,279 1,519,539
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,916,789 397,250
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — END OF YEAR $ 3,000,068 S 1,916,789
(See Independent Auditors’ Report and Accompanying Notes)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc. (Organization), envisions a society in which aging
is defined by health, dignity, independence, and self-determination. The Organization’s
charitable mission—to enable people to live independently at home through the provision of
nutritious meals, personal contact, and support services—helps those who are aging and
disabled sustain their optimum health, maintain economic stability, and improve their overall
quality of life. By helping clients to remain living independently and safely in their homes, the
Organization prevents premature institutionalization, affirms dignity, and supports continued
integration in the social fabric of the community.

Specializing in services to aging and disabled adults, the Organization provides nutritious
meals, delivered daily, and support services that impact food and economic security, reduce
social isolation, improve health, and promote successful aging. Fundamental to the success
of its programs, in addition to healthy and nutritious food, is early identification and
intervention through in-depth assessment, linkages to community resources, wellness checks
and client concerns reporting, and case management services.

In addition to daily home-delivered, hot, nutritious meals, the following programs and
support services are offered:

* Daily health and wellness checks

* Client concerns reporting and emergency response

*  GAP: a grocery shopping assistance program

* Groceries to Go: a monthly shelf-stable food delivery program

* Call Connections: a social isolation and loneliness reduction service

*  HUBS: a home repair and modification program

* Case management and care coordination services to address economic security,
optimize health and reduce hospitalization and health care costs, and improve overall
quality of life

Following the pandemic crisis, the Organization continues to support increased need
throughout the region, providing services to over 7,000 individuals throughout Central
Maryland.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION

All references in the financial statements to the Codification refer to the Accounting Standards
Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) issued by
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). The Codification is the single source of
authoritative GAAP in the United States.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD ADOPTION

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13 — Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326) to modify the model for recognizing credit losses on
financial instruments not measured at fair value. The modified model requires the immediate
recognition of credit losses on financial instruments based on an estimate of expected losses,
replacing the incurred loss method under previous guidance. The Organization adopted the
standard effective July 1, 2023. The adoption of ASU 2016-13 did not have a material impact
on the Organization’s financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements were prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
GAAP. Under the accrual basis of accounting, support and revenue are recorded when earned,
and expenses are recorded when incurred. Net assets, revenues, and expenses are classified
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of assets whose use is limited by donor-imposed time and/or purpose
restrictions.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Contributions received and unconditional promises to give are measured at their fair values
and reported as an increase in net assets. The Organization reports gifts of cash and other
assets as donor-restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the
use of the donated assets or designated as support for future periods. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the Statements of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting
period are reported as unrestricted revenue.

The Organization obtained funding agreements related to conditional contributions to be
received in future years. The Organization’s unrecognized conditional contributions to be
received in future years totaled approximately $2,046,000 as of June 30, 2024.

Meal service income and Medicaid waiver income are both generated by supplying home-
delivered, nutritious meals to individuals. The Organization records income upon delivery of
the meals, which is when the performance obligation is satisfied.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may exceed
federally insured limits. The Organization believes it is not exposed to any significant credit

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)

ELLIN “TUCKER PAGE |11



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

risk on cash. The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities
of less than three months to be cash equivalents.

ACCOUNTS, GOVERNMENT FEES, GRANTS, AND PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded
at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in
future years are recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The
discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to the
years in which the promises are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in
contribution revenue.

Receivables are valued at management’s estimate of the amount that will ultimately be
collected. The allowance for credit losses is based on specific identification of uncollectable
accounts and the Organization’s historical collection experience. The allowance for credit
losses was $23,581 and $75,335 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Both realized and unrealized gains and losses are
reflected in the Statements of Activities. See Note 2 for a discussion of fair value
measurements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at approximate fair value at date of
donation. The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing expenditures in excess of

$2,500.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

FUNCTIONAL ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

The costs of providing programs and other activities were summarized on a functional basis
in the Statements of Activities and Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs were
allocated among the benefiting programs and supporting services.

ADVERTISING

Advertising costs totaled $151,830 and $84,301 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively, and are expensed as incurred. There was no donated advertising in the years

ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTE 2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

INCOME TAXES

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code (Code). In addition, the Internal Revenue Service determined the Organization
is not a private organization within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code.

The Organization follows the provisions of Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes under
the Income Taxes Topic of the Codification. The Codification requires the Organization's
evaluation of tax positions, which include maintaining its tax-exempt status and the taxability
of any unrelated business income, and does not allow recognition of tax positions which do
not meet a “more-likely-than-not” threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax
authority. Management does not believe it took any tax positions that would not meet this
threshold.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts
could differ from those estimates.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization evaluated subsequent events and transactions for potential recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements through December 19, 2024, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS

The fair value and cost of investments at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost

Money Market and Cash

Equivalents S 8,849,577 S 8,849,577 S 4,689,300 S 4,689,300
Common Stocks 622,240 534,298 538,517 530,328
Corporate Fixed Income - - 27,483 30,597
Government Securities - - 52,738 55,968
Mutual and Exchange Traded

Funds 3,756,907 3,391,154 3,224,121 3,228,631
Hedge Funds 397,025 396,287 426,771 428,058
Jewish Community Investment

Fund 12,768,794 8,999,808 12,043,663 9,318,895

Total S 26,394,543 $22,171,124 $ 21,002,593 $ 18,281,777

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the Codification establishes a
hierarchal disclosure framework, which prioritizes and ranks the level of market price
observability used in measuring investments and other financial instruments at fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets that the Organization has the ability to
access.

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.

Below is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
There were no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Common Stocks, Exchange Traded Funds, and Government and Corporate Securities: Valued
at the closing price reported on the active markets on which the individual securities are
traded.

Mutual Funds: Valued at the net asset value (NAV) of shares held at period end. NAV is based
on the value of the underlying assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities, and then divided
by the number of shares outstanding. NAV is a quoted price in an active market.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

Jewish Community Investment Fund (JCIF): The Organization holds an interest in JCIF, a fund
managed by The Associated: Jewish Community Federation of Baltimore. JCIF has
discretionary investment authority over the Organization’s interest and provides periodic
value assessments of the fund, which are incorporated into the Organization’s financial
statements. As of June 30, 2024, JCIF's investments consisted of equity and debt securities
(Level 1 and 2 investments) and investments in private capital investment entities, off-shore
investment vehicles, and other partnership investments (Level 3 investments). The Level 3
investments are not marketable generally due to stipulations in the partnership or investment
agreements. The value of these investments was determined by the general partner or
investment manager. As such, the Organization classified this investment as Level 3. There
are no restrictions for withdrawing the Organization’s investments from JCIF.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative
of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Organization
believes its valuation method is appropriate and consistent with other market participants,
the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The Organization’s investments in hedge funds are measured at fair value using the NAV as a
practical expedient. In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic
of the codification, these investments are not required to be categorized within the fair value
hierarchy.

Hedge funds generally restrict redemptions. Redemptions may be subject to fees up to 5%
and lock-up periods up to one year.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization’s
assets for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024
Level 1 Level 3 Total
Money Market and Cash Equivalents S 8,849,577 S - S 8,849,577
Common Stocks 622,240 622,240
Mutual and Exchange Traded Funds 3,756,907 - 3,756,907
JCIF - 12,768,794 12,768,794
Total Level 1 and 3 $ 13,228,724 $ 12,768,794 25,997,518
Hedge Funds 397,025

Total Investments

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)

$ 26,394,543
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

2023
Level 1 Level 3 Total
Money Market and Cash Equivalents S 4,689,300 S - S 4,689,300
Common Stocks 538,517 - 538,517
Corporate Fixed Income 27,483 - 27,483
Government Securities 52,738 - 52,738
Mutual and Exchange Traded Funds 3,224,121 - 3,224,121
JCIF - 12,043,663 12,043,663
Total Level 1 and 3 S 8,532,159 S 12,043,663 20,575,822
Hedge Funds 426,771
Total Investments S 21,002,593

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in fair value of the Organization’s Level 3
assets for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Balance at July 1 $ 12,043,663 $ 11,498,620
Investment Return, Net 1,221,291 545,043
Disbursements (496,160) -
Balance at June 30 S 12,768,794 S 12,043,663

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with investments, it is reasonably possible that
changes in the values of investments will occur in the near term, and those changes could
materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.

Investment income for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Dividends and Interest S 667,612 S 354,760
Net Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments 46,237 (64,035)
Unrealized Appreciation on Investments 1,498,418 915,855
2,212,267 1,206,580
Less: Investment Fees 72,465 61,613

S 2,139,802 S 1,144,967

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

Investment income is classified as follows for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Operating Income Drawn From Endowments S 712,399 S 621,165
Non-Operating Income 1,427,403 523,802

S 2,139,802 S 1,144,967

NOTE 3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of the following:

2024 2023
Building and Improvements S 2,674,804 S 2,631,702
Land 385,554 385,554
Kitchen Equipment 1,090,000 1,095,491
Furniture and Fixtures 93,887 93,887
Computer Software and Equipment 505,046 534,404
Motor Vehicles 2,290,107 2,272,087
Construction in Progress 380,635 144,526
7,420,033 7,157,651
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 4,193,254 4,267,919
Property and Equipment, Net S 3,226,779 S 2,889,732

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $549,689 and $483,170 for the years ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 4 BOARD-DESIGNATED ENDOWMENT

In August 1989, the Board of Directors (Board) created a Board-designated endowment fund
(Endowment Fund) to support the mission of the Organization. The Board established policies
for the management, investment strategy, and distribution of bequests made to the
Organization. Historically, bequests made to the Organization were unrestricted, but the
Organization has the capacity to manage restricted bequests if received.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

INVESTMENT PoLicy

The Endowment Fund is overseen by the Finance Committee using the services of professional
advisors. The Finance Committee has established four investment pools for the purpose of
managing investment returns within acceptable risk parameters.

A portion of the Endowment Fund is retained in a money market account to provide for near-
term operational support (see Use of Funds —Spending Policy) and covers any cash flow needs
that arise.

Gains and losses will remain in the principal of the Endowment Fund. Earnings that accrue
from investments will be credited and remain in the Endowment Fund.

USE OF FUNDS — SPENDING PoLIcY

Annually, up to 5% of the market value of the Endowment Funds, except for the Capital
Building and Campaign Fund, will be transferred to the operating account for use by the
Organization to support its basic mission. The percentage may be amended by the Finance
Committee as determined to be appropriate. In the event of an operational cash surplus, the
Finance Committee may transfer a portion of such surplus to the Endowment Fund with the
approval of the Board.

The Capital Building and Campaign Fund will be used as needed for building-related expenses.
Requests for the use of the Endowment Fund for capital expenditures are submitted to the
Finance Committee and presented to the Board for approval.

The Finance Committee reserves funds for specific purposes. Net assets with Board
designations at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

2024 2023
Undesignated $ 13,077,466 $ 13,003,027
Hardship Reserve Fund 5,044,693 4,733,814
Capital Building and Campaign Fund 8,272,384 7,906,590
Board-Designated Endowment Net Assets,
End of Year S 26,394,543 S 25,643,431

BORROWING OF FUNDS

In the event of a cash deficit in the operating account, the Organization's finance department
is authorized to borrow up to $400,000 from the Endowment Fund to avoid short-term

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NOTE 5

borrowing costs. These funds will generally be provided from the Endowment Fund's money
market account. Amounts borrowed and subsequent repayments are reported to the Finance
Committee and Board. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, no such activity
occurred.

FAIR VALUE OF ENDOWMENT FUND

A bequest of $4,640,838 was Board-designated to the Capital Building and Campaign Fund
and is included in accounts and pledges receivable, net in the Statement of Financial Position
as of June 30, 2023. These funds were invested in the endowment during the year ended June
30, 2024 and are reflected as contributions in the following table.

Changes in the Endowment Fund’s net assets for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023
were as follows:

2024 2023

Board-Designated Endowment Fund Net Assets,

Beginning of Year: S 21,002,593 S 20,260,509

Investment Return, Net 2,139,802 1,144,967
Contributions 4,658,308 880,448
Amounts Appropriated for Expenditure (1,406,160) (1,283,331)

Board-Designated Endowment Fund Net

Assets, End of Year S 26,394,543 $ 21,002,593

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2024 and 2023 were restricted for the following
purposes:

2024 2023
Subject to Expenditure for Specified Purposes:

Specific Meal Programs S 169,321 S 3,350
Client Home Repairs 77,438 199,917
Operations Support - 5,083
Time Restricted 205,000 -
Other Support Services 314,954 581,697

S 766,713 S 790,047

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NOTE 6 DONATED MATERIALS, SERVICES, AND OCCUPANCY

The Organization receives donated services from volunteers who staff area packing sites and
deliver meals. In addition, various expenses are incurred by outside parties for the operation
of area kitchens and include rent and utility expense. The Organization also receives donated
items and services for the culinary special event.

In accordance with GAAP, the Organization reported the value of the donated materials,
services, and occupancy as public support and program expense in the Statements of
Activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. The value of the donated time by
volunteers for staffing area packing sites and delivering meals and volunteer Board and
committee hours was not reported in these financial statements, as these donated services
do not meet the criteria for recognition.

Donated materials, services, and occupancy are valued at estimated fair market values based
on comparable offerings within the Maryland region.

The value of donated materials, services, and occupancy was as follows at June 30:

2024 2023

Personal Services (Approximately 65,207 and 69,988
Hours, Respectively) S 2,281,593 S 2,387,991
Occupancy 479,865 386,770
Delivery and Services 249,648 307,954
Other 18,376 2,345
3,029,482 3,085,060
Less: Value of Personal Services Not Recognized 2,281,593 2,387,991

S 747,889 S 697,069

NOTE 7 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases office and packing sites as well as various office equipment under
operating leases expiring through 2027. The right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities
are being amortized over the respective lives of the leases. The weighted average remaining
lease term was 3.43 years and 3.96 years as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
weighted average discount rate was 3.52% and 2.88% as of June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

Future minimum rental expenses under these leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, 2025 S 63,517
2026 61,494

2027 57,503

2028 17,338

Thereafter 8,665

Total Minimum Lease Payments 208,517

Less: Amount Representing Interest 12,244
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 196,273

Less: Current Portion 57,790
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments S 138,483

The Organization also leases office and packing sites under short term leases.

Rent expense under operating leases totaled $126,470 and $137,427 for the years ended June
30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NOTE 8 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The Organization has a comprehensive fleet management agreement, which includes
programs for fuel, maintenance, and repairs for the current fleet and any additional vehicles
leased under this agreement. The weighted average remaining lease term was 4.1 years as of
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The weighted average discount rate was 5.51% and
4.93% as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, 2025 S 284,401
2026 248,480

2027 245,958

2028 207,318

2029 86,365

Total Minimum Lease Payments 1,072,522

Less: Amount Representing Interest 232,814
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 839,708

Less: Current Portion 225,719
Net Long-Term Portion S 613,989

The cost and accumulated amortization of assets held under finance leases were as follows:

2024 2023
Cost S 1,435,759 S 1,118,191
Less: Accumulated Amortization 529,598 406,293

S 906,161 S 711,898

Amortization expense was $242,186 and $255,586 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NOTE 9 LiIQuIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization’s financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures
within one year of the Statements of Financial Position date were as follows:

2024 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 3,000,068 S 1,916,789
Accounts and Pledges Receivable, Net 1,509,365 6,368,827
Government Fees and Grants Receivable 443,843 522,832
Investments 26,394,543 21,002,593
Total Financial Assets 31,347,819 29,811,041
Contractual or Donor-Imposed Restrictions:
Donor Contributions Restricted to Specific Purposes (766,713) (790,047)
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs for
General Expenditures Within One Year Before
Board Designations 30,581,106 29,020,994
Board-Designated (26,394,543) (25,643,431)
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs for
General Expenditures Within One Year After
Board Designations S 4,186,563 S 3,377,563

As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial
assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due.
Additionally, the Organization has Board-designated net assets without donor restrictions
that could be made available for current operations if necessary.

NOTE 10 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a 401(k) plan. Eligible employees may contribute up to 100% of their
compensation each year, subject to certain statutory limitations. The Organization makes
matching contributions equal to the lesser of 50% of a participant’s contribution during the
plan year or 1.5% of a participant’s compensation during the year. The Organization may also
make a discretionary contribution, which is determined by the Board each year. The Board
elected to make discretionary contributions equal to 5% of a participant’s compensation
during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. Retirement expense charged to operations
for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $247,053 and $188,387, respectively.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NOTE11 CoMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization has an agreement with an outside party to manage and operate its food
preparation facilities and production of meals. The agreement requires payment based on
average daily meals provided. The agreement expires on June 30, 2026. The Organization
incurred expenses of $5,058,311 and $5,146,206 under this agreement during the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Organization receives a portion of its revenues from grants, some of which are subject to
audit by the grantor. The ultimate determination of amounts received under these programs
may be based on allowable costs and subject to audit by the grantor. Management believes
such audits will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

NOTE 12 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Equipment acquired under finance leases totaled $449,658 and $763,767 during the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Facilities acquired under operating leases totaled approximately $89,000 and $200,000 during
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
CoMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

We audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Meals on Wheels of Central
Maryland, Inc. (Organization), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as of June 30, 2024, the
related Statements of Activities, Functional Expenses, and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, and issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2024.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control is a deficiency
or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control is a deficiency or a combination of
deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that were not identified.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements were
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

oo 4 Ll

ELLIN & TUCKER
Certified Public Accountants

Baltimore, Maryland
December 19, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

OPINION ON EACH MAIJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

We audited Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.’s (Organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Office of Management and Budget's Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization’s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2024. The Organization’s major federal programs are identified in the Summary of
Auditors’ Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.

BASIS FOR OPINION ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each of its
major federal programs. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR COMPLIANCE

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization’s federal programs.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
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accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization’s compliance with the requirements
of each of its major federal programs as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the Organization’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
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identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

We audited the financial statements of the Organization as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and
issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2024 that contained an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information was subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and to certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

oo 4+ Lrpe ot

ELLIN & TUCKER
Certified Public Accountants

Baltimore, Maryland
December 19, 2024
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial statements
were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified? Yes X  None
Reported
Noncompliance material to the financial statements? Yes X No
FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be

material weaknesses? Yes X None
Reported
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of Major Programs:

Federal Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
93.045 Older Americans Act, Title Ill, Part C
21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B
programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes No

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No matters were reported.

SECTION 11l — FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were reported.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal
Federal Grantor Assistance Pass-Through
Program Title Listing Contract Federal
Pass-Through Grantor Number Number Expenditures
Department of Health and Human Services
Older Americans Act, Title Ill, Part C Nutrition Services
Anne Arundel County Area Agency on Aging 93.045 5812 S 457,974
Baltimore County Department of Aging 93.045 4187 /SCON-10001850 1,089,709
Baltimore City Commission on Aging and Retirement
Education 93.045 38968 / 39435 589,324
Carroll County Office on Aging 93.045 25-F-2-18/19
25-F-1-23/24 165,766
Harford County Area Agency on Aging 93.045 22-018 282,735
Howard County Office on Aging 93.045 4400003982 314,987
Montgomery County Office on Aging 93.045 1149335 249,558
3,150,053
Department of the Treasury
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
Baltimore City Commission on Aging and Retirement
Education 21.027 38968 / 39435 2,740,353
Department of Homeland Security
Federal Emergency Management Agency, Emergency
Food and Shelter National Board Program
Baltimore City Commission on Aging and Retirement
Education 97.024 10,111
Baltimore County Department of Aging 97.024 12,750
Carroll County Department of Aging 97.024 1,500
Howard County Department of Aging 97.024 1,500
25,861
Department of Agriculture
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program
Maryland State Department of Human Resources 10.568 186,364
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards S 6,102,631

(See Independent Auditors’ Report and Accompanying Notes)
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc.

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Meals on Wheels of Central Maryland, Inc. (Organization) under
programs for the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024. The information in
the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the Organization, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported in the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

The Organization elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

(See Independent Auditors’ Report)
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